
Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 26 November 2018

TIME: 5.45 pm (Member Briefing)
6.00 pm (Meeting)

VENUE: Committee Room 4, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Q2 Budget Monitoring Report (Paul Hutchings) (Pages 1 - 12)

4  Green Space Strategy Supplementary Planning Document (Chris 
Findley / Steve Davey) 

(Pages 13 - 26)

5  Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: Update on Local Air Quality 
Modelling (Sarah Ashurst) 

(Pages 27 - 52)

6  Minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2018 and matters 
arising. 

(Pages 53 - 76)

7  Draft Work Programme. (Pages 77 - 78)

8  Any other business. 

9  Date and time of next meeting - Monday 28 January 2019, 6.00 
p.m. (Briefing for Panel Members at 5.45 p.m). 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards, Democratic Services, 
claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 1
(OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

ITEM NO. 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE

TO 
GROWTH AND PROSPERITY SCRUITNY PANEL

26 NOVEMBER 2018

TITLE:  REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING  2018/19

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
It is recommended that the Lead Members:

 Consider the current position and forecasted position to year end for the Service Group’s 
revenue budget and capital programme.

 Consider the progress made towards the agreed savings programme.
 Consider further measures to bring forecast expenditure back in line with the budget.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

(a) Revenue
The Service Group budget for 2018/19 is £44.978m with forecast expenditure for the year of £45.378m, 
providing an adverse variance of £0.400m at year end. 

(b) Savings
The Service Group agreed CSR savings for the year total £1.837m, with £1.154m showing as either 
achieved or low risk. 

(c) Capital
The Service Group programme budget for 2018/19 is £108.388m; at this stage there are no issues to 
be highlighted.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 SAP general ledger and BI reports
 Various documents held on the accountancy team

CONTACT OFFICERS: 
Paul Hutchings (Revenue) 0161 793 2574 paul.hutchings@salford.gov.uk
Alex Archer (Capital) 0161 778 0498 alex.archer@salford.gov.uk

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High 

Key risks to budgetary control risk and achievement of savings are identified in this report 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

mailto:paul.hutchings@salford.gov.uk
mailto:alex.archer@salford.gov.uk


2

SOURCE OF FUNDING: Sections in this report consider both the revenue budget and capital programme

LEGAL ADVICE OBTAINED: Not applicable

FINANCIAL ADVICE OBTAINED:   This report concerns key aspects of the Council’s revenue finances and 
has been produced by the Finance division.

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): None specifically 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 2018/19 revenue budget; 2018/19 capital programme

Page 2



3

1 Introduction
1.1 This report is set out in four main sections. 

 Section 2 sets out the current position of expenditure against the revenue budget and forecasts the 
year end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities, and revenue budget virements proposed.

 Section 3 provides an analysis of progress made towards agreed CSR savings targets.

 Section 4 provides an update of the capital programme.

2 Revenue Budget

2.1 The current position and year end forecast are set out in Table A below. Agreed savings (discussed in 
section 3) have been built into the budget figures. Expenditure data reflects salaries and other 
expenditure up to 30/09/2018.  

2.2 At this stage of the financial year, projections of income and expenditure remain estimates and  there is 
still a risk of unforeseen variations to the forecast outturn. It remains important to closely monitor and 
manage the accounts in order to address any issues as they arise.  

2.3   Table A: Revenue budget to September 2018

Annual 
Budget 
£000

Forecast 
Outturn 
£000

Forecast 
Variation 
£000

Risk 
Assessment

Planning & Transport 15,150 14,360 790 GREEN
Housing, Communities & 
Neighbourhoods

           
882 1,143 (261) RED

Environment & 
Community Safety

         
16,709 17,418 (709) RED

Culture & Leisure
           

6,865 6,872 (7) AMBER

Regeneration
           

7,112 7,107 5 GREEN

Property (1,740) (1,522) (218) RED

Total
         

44,978 45,378 (400)

2.3 Set out below are those areas which have been identified as currently representing the greatest risks in 
budgetary control. These include areas where there is a high current and/or projected variance and/or 
a high risk of not achieving CSR savings targets. 

Planning and Transport
The £0.790m positive variance reported is due in the main to a positive variation on income 
specifically in respect of planning fees and advertising on the highways. This has been a reduction on 

Page 3



4

the previous months outturn forecast due in the main to the reprofiling of a planning application fees 
into the first quarter of 2019/20.

Housing, Communities and Neighbourhoods
The £0.261m adverse variance is mainly due the underachievement of Integrated Place savings.

Environment and Community Safety
The £0.709m reported adverse variance is due in the main to a combination of the underachievement 
previous years’ savings targets within Regulatory Strategy, Grounds Maintenance, Street Scene and 
Waste Services of £0.710m and a Public Health saving of £0.100m. This has been offset in part by 
underspends across the wider service group and work remains on-going to mitigate this overspend in 
year and to address the achievement of the savings going forward.

Property
The £0.218m negative variance on Property is due in the main to an underachievement of income on 
Salford University Business Park. Discussions are ongoing to help mitigate some of the issues. 

3 Savings

3.1 Approved ‘new’ savings for the Service Group agreed during the 2018/19 budget setting process 
totalled £1.837m.  Progress to date is summarised in Table B below.  A more detailed breakdown is 
provided in Appendix 1.

 
3.2 Table B Savings summary

  Saving Progress Shortfall 

Risk Assessment RAG Rating
Target   
£000

to date          
£000

to date    
£000

Low risk or already achieved Green 1,154 1,154 0
Medium Risk Amber 683 0 683
High Risk Red 0 0 0
Total  1,837 1,154 683

3.3   The medium risk saving of £683k relates to the Waste Disposal Levy, and whilst all Levy budgets sit 
within the Corporate group the saving has been allocated to Place as the lead Service Group for this 
Levy. Whilst the saving is expected to be achieved in full the final position will not be known until 
nearer to financial year end when GMWDA have collated data from all the participating authorities.

Page 4



5

4    Capital

4.1 Introduction

This section advises the Lead Members of recent developments regarding the Place capital programme 
which as of September 2018 totals £108.388m.

4.2 2018/19 Capital Programme

Executive Lead Members are asked to consider and comment on the current Place capital 
programme, analysed by service area in Table C and resources in Table D. In September, the 
programme has been reduced by £17.500m, since last reported in August to £108.388m, a number of 
schemes have been moved between monitoring groups, details of these changes can be found in 
section 4.3.

Table C – Programme and Expenditure September 2018

High Level Summary Movement in Actual Spend
Aug-18 Sep-18 Sep-18 Sep-18

£m £m £m £m
Regeneration 37.776 35.526 2.250-              8.608
Housing and Planning 21.551 6.797 14.754-            0.707
Property 41.737 41.241 0.496-              21.726
Housing (Environment) 3.480 3.480 - 0.308
Green Space Infrastructure 2.275 2.275 - 0.763
Operational Division Service Issues 0.796 0.796 - 0.304
Citywide & Bereavement 0.061 0.061 - 0.049
Highways 14.124 14.124 - 1.447
Salford Community Leisure 4.088 4.088 - 1.394
Total Programme 125.888 108.388 17.500-            35.306

Programme

Appendix 2 attached provides a detailed scheme analysis of the programme, including sources of 
funding and spend to the end of September.

Page 5



6

Table D – Resources

Source of Funding Movement in
Aug-18 Sep-18 Sep-18

£m £m £m
Internal Resources
Unsupported Borrowing Self-Financing 58.970 41.470 (17.500)
Unsupported Borrowing General Support 37.996 37.996 -
Subtotal - Internal Resources 96.966 79.466 (17.500)

External Resources
Capital Receipts 0.072 0.072 -
Grants 23.353 23.353 -
Other Contributions 5.497 5.497 -
Subtotal – External Resources 28.922 28.922 -

Total Programme 125.888 108.388 (17.500)

Programme

4.3 Changes to the capital programme

Housing and Planning 

Reduction in resource for:-

-£17.500m Tower Blocks (Unsupported Borrowing Self-Financing). Council funding was not 
permitted by government and has been replaced by private sector funding.

Following agreement at the Regeneration board, a number of housing delivery and low carbon 
schemes have been moved to the Housing and Planning monitoring group from Regeneration and 
Property (as shown in Table C). 

4.4  Issues/Risks

At this stage there are no issues to be highlighted. The programme will continue to be closely 
monitored to ensure any potential spend pressures are identified at the earliest opportunity.

4.5 Recommendation

Lead Members are requested to review the current position regarding the 2018/19 capital 
programme.

Page 6



7

Appendix 1 – Budget Savings Tracker 2018/19

2018/19 Budget Savings Tracker
   

Tracker Ref Description 2018/19

 £m
  

Place

PL302 Book of Remembrance service
Investment made last year in digitising the Book of Remembrance to an 
online facility means weekend staffing no longer required. 0.009

  
PL303 Reduction in staff

Reduction in management costs posts through voluntary arrangements. 0.108

PL304 One-off release of funds
Non-recurrent release of funds held in various budgets including Urban 
Vision Depot Improvement funds. 0.423

  
PL305 Reduction in Partnership Costs – Property Services

Urban Vision Service Level Agreement with Salix Homes resulting in 
additional income. 0.034

PL306 Income generation from provision of CCTV Services to Trafford MBC
0.098

PL308 Income Generation from Libraries Capital Investment
Reforms through Libraries capital investment which will enhance IT and 
reduce costs and increase income generation. 0.141

PL309 Ordsall Community Arts Grant
0.011

PL310 Removal of Transport Links Budget
Reduction in Media City metrolink budget to reflect return on investment 
and variable surplus income 0.040

PL314
Income via the Trading Standards through the Proceeds of Crime Act 
2017 0.045

PL315 Reduction in contribution to BBC Philharmonic 0.080

PL318 UV partnership arrangements 0.165

Corporate

PL317 Reduction in Waste Levy costs
Revised arrangements for waste disposal has reduced cost without impact 
on service level. 0.683

 Environment total 1.837

Page 7



Appendix 2 Capital Programme 2018/19

Programme Spend as at end Invest to save Capital Rec General Grant Other Total 
£m £m £m £m £m £m

PLACE

Regeneration 
Pre implementation - Regeneration 0.282 0.039 - - 0.280 0.002 - 0.282
Pre implementation - Infrastructure 0.314 0.070 - - 0.314 - - 0.314
City Centre 8.205 0.868 0.097 - 4.034 2.469 1.606 8.205
Ordsall and Salford Quays 0.918 0.282 - - 0.484 0.434 - 0.918
Western Gateway 0.359 0.009 - - 0.309 0.050 - 0.359
Pendleton 0.325 0.016 - - 0.325 0.325
Town centres 0.330 0.022 - - 0.170 0.110 0.050 0.330
RHS Bridgewater 9.250 4.998 - - 6.868 2.382 - 9.250
Strategic Connections 12.295 1.615 - - 1.671 9.929 0.696 12.295
Strategic Place Making 0.746 0.075 - - 0.735 0.011 - 0.745
Capitalised salaries and project costs 2.503 0.614 - - 2.503 - - 2.503

35.526 8.608 0.097 - 17.693 15.385 2.352 35.526
Housing and Planning
Lower Broughton 0.148 0.004 - 0.072 0.075 - - 0.148
Seedley & Langworthy (CPO legacy) 0.114 0.001 - - 0.114 - - 0.114
Fees - - - - - - - -
Home Improvement Agency 0.695 0.022 - - 0.695 - - 0.695
Winter Welfare 0.069 - - - 0.034 - 0.035 0.069
Affordable warmth 0.240 0.030 - - 0.237 0.003 - 0.240
Gas Safe 0.013 - - - - 0.013 - 0.013
Handyperson 0.350 0.171 - - 0.350 - - 0.350
Stock condition survey 0.015 - - - 0.015 - - 0.015
Salford Money Line 0.040 0.010 - - 0.040 - - 0.040
Disabled Facilities work 0.041 0.025 - - - - 0.041 0.041
Creating a new Pendleton 0.326 0.239 - - 0.326 - - 0.326
Beechfarm - 0.001 - - - - - -
Tower block safety works 2.000 0.181 - - 2.000 - - 2.000
Housing Delivery 2.250 - 0.250 - - - 2.000 2.250
Low carbon (carbon management) 0.496 0.023 - - 0.496 - - 0.496

6.797 0.707 0.250 0.072 4.382 0.016 2.076 6.797
Property
Car Parking 0.165 0.072 - - 0.165 - - 0.165
General Office moves 2.132 0.388 - - 2.132 - - 2.132
Swinton Gateway 0.037 - - - - - 0.037 0.037
Property Acquisition Fund 0.238 - - - 0.238 - - 0.238
100 Embankment 38.669 21.250 38.669 - - - - 38.669
Cost of disposals * - 0.016 - - - - - -

41.241 21.726 38.669 - 2.535 - 0.037 41.241

Resources
Scheme Name

P
age 8



9

Programme Spend as at end Invest to save Capital Rec General Grant Other Total 
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Housing (Environment)
Empty property project costs 0.495 - - - 0.495 - - 0.495
Landlord Accreditation 0.005 - - - 0.005 - - 0.005
DCLG Cluster 0.072 0.020 - - 0.072 - - 0.072
Empty properties 0.993 0.165 - - 0.287 0.706 - 0.993
Housing enforcement 1.634 0.095 - - 1.634 - - 1.634
Housing crime reduction 0.282 0.028 - - 0.282 - - 0.282

3.480 0.308 - - 2.774 0.706 - 3.480

Green Space Infrastructure
Play Area Improvements 0.064 0.013 - - 0.064 - - 0.064
Parks Infrastrure Improvements 0.111 0.042 - - 0.111 - - 0.111
Tree management 0.083 - - - 0.083 - - 0.083
Mandley Park 0.050 - - - 0.050 - - 0.050
Country Parks 0.056 0.019 - - 0.056 - - 0.056
Lightoaks park 0.017 - - - 0.017 - - 0.017
Blackleach Reservoir - - - - - - - -
Peel Park 0.452 0.180 - - - 0.452 - 0.452
Boothsbank Park 0.021 - - - - - 0.021 0.021
Ordsall Park Improvements (S106) 0.011 - - - - - 0.011 0.011
Buile Hill Park (S106) 0.145 0.001 - - - - 0.145 0.145
Blackleach Artworks (S106) 0.048 - - - - - 0.048 0.048
Albert Park Tennis Works (S106) 0.001 - - - - - 0.001 0.001
Victoria Park Play Area (S106) 0.073 - - - - 0.073 0.073
Cadishead Park Resurfacing (S106) 0.132 0.009 - - - - 0.132 0.132
Wardley park Improvements (S106) - - - - - - - -
Roe Green Play Facilities 0.111 0.093 - - 0.031 - 0.080 0.111
Allotments 0.006 - - - 0.006 - - 0.006
Parks Buildings Infrastructure (Boddan Lodge) 0.050 - - - 0.050 - - 0.050
Landslide Broughton 0.145 - - - 0.145 - - 0.145
Princes Park Skate Park - - - - - - -
Unadopted Road Infrastructure - - - - - - - -
George Thomas Play Area 0.148 0.007 - - 0.022 - 0.126 0.148
Castle Irwell Flood Basin 0.552 0.400 - - 0.552 - - 0.552

2.275 0.763 - - 1.186 0.452 0.636 2.275

Scheme Name
Resources

P
age 9



10

Programme Spend as at end Invest to save Capital Rec General Grant Other Total 
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Operational Division Service Issues
Waste containers 0.225 0.219 - - 0.225 - - 0.225
Waste vehicles  - box vans split body 0.150 - 0.150 - - - - 0.150
Wheel bin containers delivery vehicles 0.070 - 0.070 - - - - 0.070
Litter bins 0.031 0.010 - - 0.031 - - 0.031
Citywide & Commercial Vehicles 0.075 0.074 0.075 - - - - 0.075
SC & GM fleet replacement 0.245 - 0.245 - - - - 0.245

0.796 0.304 0.540 - 0.256 - - 0.796

Citywide & Bereavement
Bereavement Services Infrastructure 0.061 0.049 - - 0.061 - - 0.061

0.061 0.049 - - 0.061 - - 0.061

Highways
Capitalisation of revenue 2.300 - - - 2.300 - - 2.300
Highways Investment Programme 1.749 0.331 - - 1.749 - - 1.749
Crash Barrier Programme (S) 0.217 0.204 - - 0.217 - - 0.217
Drainage & Culvert Investment Programme 0.768 0.134 - - 0.768 - - 0.768
Highways Capital Investment 0.334 - - 0.334 - - 0.334
Flood Risk Management - - - - - - - -
Construction schemes 1.812 - - 0.580 1.197 0.035 1.812
Structures 0.918 0.204 - - 0.918 - 0.918
Signs and Bollards 0.167 0.008-                   - - 0.167 - - 0.167
Highways Network Management 0.036 0.004 - - 0.036 - - 0.036
Lighting Programme (High Mast) 0.160 0.024 0.143 - 0.017 - - 0.160
Overhead Contribution 0.197 - - - 0.197 - - 0.197
SUDS 0.100 - - - 0.100 - - 0.100
Block 3 5.365 0.554 - - - 5.364 0.001 5.365

14.124 1.447 0.143 - 7.384 6.561 0.036 14.124

Scheme Name
Resources

P
age 10



11

Programme Spend as at end Invest to save Capital Rec General Grant Other Total 
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Salford Community Leisure
Playing Pitch Strategy 0.284 0.005 - - 0.072 0.212 - 0.284
Brookhouse Changing Rooms 0.139 0.002 - - 0.139 - 0.139
Cleavley track - Synthetic Track Repair 0.385 0.002 - - 0.385 - - 0.385
Playing Pitch Drainage Improvements 0.072 0.072 - - 0.013 - 0.059 0.072
Cadishead Changing Rooms (Rhinos) 0.122 0.105 - - 0.039 0.011 0.073 0.122
Library improvement programme 0.265 0.014 0.265 - - - - 0.265
Development Salford Museum & Art Gallery 0.258 0.041 - - 0.248 0.010 - 0.258
Watersports café shop & corporate events 0.065 - 0.065 - - - - 0.065
Local Swim Project 0.020 - - - - - 0.020 0.020
Worsley Leisure Centre Refurbishment 1.442 0.847 1.442 - - - 1.442
New Pendleton Leisure Centre 0.503 0.039 - - 0.503 - - 0.503
Fit City Cadishead - various 0.031 - - - 0.031 - - 0.031
Fit City Irlam 0.013 - - - 0.013 - - 0.013
Broughton Fit City - relocate cafe - - - - - - -
Broughton Fit City 0.005 - - - 0.005 - - 0.005
Public IT Network - - - - - - -
Clifton Country Park VC Electrics 0.017 0.010 - - - - 0.017 0.017
Ordsall Leisure Cross Fit 0.088 0.088 - - - - 0.088 0.088
Salford Sports Village 0.105 0.056 - - - - 0.105 0.105
Lowry investment 0.274 0.114 - - 0.274 - - 0.274

4.088 1.394 1.772 - 1.723 0.233 0.361 4.088

TOTAL - PLACE 108.388 35.306 41.470 0.072 37.995 23.353 5.497 108.388

Scheme Name
Resources

*The reported variance for cost of disposals will be closely monitored and funded from capital receipts at year end.

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT AND THE LEAD MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND 

COMMUNITY SAFETY

TO GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL

ON 26 NOVEMBER 2018

TITLE: Adoption of Salford Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning Document 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel:

I) Note the contents of the revised Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning 
Document which is proposed for adoption and comment on the report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The city council has undertaken a review of Salford Greenspace Strategy 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) which was adopted in 2006. Subject to 
approval by Cabinet, the revised Greenspace Strategy SPD will be adopted by the 
city council, and be published accompanied by the Open Space Chapter of Salford 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP), in advance of the Salford Revised Draft Local Plan 
being made available for public consultation.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2018
 Salford Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) Open Space Chapter 2018
 Consultation statement
 Determination statement on the need for a strategic environmental assessment
 Community impact assessment document
 Salford Playing Pitch Strategy and Action Plan 2018

KEY DECISION: YES

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



2

The city council adopted a Greenspace Strategy in 2006, which has successfully 
guided the policy approaches to greenspace to supplement saved policies of Salford 
Unitary Development Plan. The existing Greenspace Strategy will be replaced by a 
revised and updated document, which will become a material consideration for future 
development proposals affecting open spaces, by guiding the protection and 
enhancement in communities in all wards of the city. A separate document, the open 
space chapter of Salford’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan, identifies the specific sites 
that already meet the adopted local recreation standards, and those sites that are 
proposed to be enhanced when funding becomes available. 

ON FORWARD LOOK:       YES  

DETAILS:

1 BACKGROUND

1.1 The city council adopted the Greenspace Strategy SPD in July 2006 to 
supplement Salford’s Unitary Development Plan with additional recreation 
policies and guidance. The existing SPD has proved very successful at 
facilitating the protection and enhancement of greenspaces across Salford 
over the past twelve years. It has contributed towards significant investment in 
the types of facilities available and considerable improvement on access to the 
existing local recreation standards.

1.2 An initial scoping consultation on the intention to review the Greenspace 
Strategy SPD was undertaken in February / March 2015. This identified the 
need for a review and summarised the changes since the SPD was adopted. 
Informed by this, the Draft Greenspace Strategy SPD was prepared to align 
with the emerging policies of Salford’s Draft Local Plan. A separate document, 
the IDP Open Space chapter, provides details of the current sites that meet 
the local recreation standards and the proposals for refurbished and new 
facilities, including estimated costs. A full public consultation on the revised 
Draft Greenspace Strategy was undertaken between June and August 2017. 
The representations received during the public consultation and updated 
evidence, such as from the Salford Playing Pitch Strategy 2018, have 
contributed towards minor changes to the final document.   

1.3 Subject to approval by Cabinet, the revised Greenspace Strategy SPD will be 
formally adopted by the city council. 

2 SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS SUBMITTED

2.1 The city council directly consulted 1,956 individuals and organisations 
registered on its planning consultee database, including all statutory 
consultation bodies such as Sport England and Natural England, residents, 
community groups developers and landowners. A list of all those consulted is 
set out in the background consultation statement. Details of the consultation 

Page 14



3

were published on the city council’s website which included an interactive map 
of the key open space sites. All ward members and neighbourhood managers 
were contacted separately and invited to one of four member briefings 
sessions in advance of the public consultation period commencing.

2.2 A total of forty-one representations were received during the public 
consultation period as detailed in the consultation statement. A wide range of 
comments were received from individuals and organisations with different 
interests and perspectives on green and open spaces. Stakeholders 
recognised what the Greenspace Strategy SPD has achieved but also 
highlighted the importance of reviewing the document, particularly with it 
coinciding with the production of the emerging Salford Draft Local Plan and 
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework. Specific changes were recommended 
for the content or context of individual policies, which has resulted in 
appropriate revisions.

2.3 The importance of protecting existing assets and facilities and the benefits that 
they provide was particularly prominent in the responses. Several respondents 
identified that the SPD should recognise the multi-functional benefits of green 
infrastructure including towards biodiversity, and health and well-being whilst 
ensuring access to a range of safe recreation sites for all ages. In due course 
the city council intends to produce a Green Infrastructure SPD for public 
consultation, which will have wider scope and provide additional policy and 
guidance to support relevant chapters of Salford Local Plan.

2.4 Several site and area specific issues were raised, which have been 
considered as part of the review of the SPD. The revised open space chapter 
considers new open spaces to fill gaps in provision, as well as providing new 
and improved facilities at existing sites. Some stakeholders recommended 
further consideration of sharing responsibility for the future management and 
maintenance of some open spaces, where practicable.

2.5 A number of respondents identified issues that are beyond the scope of this 
SPD that have or will be addressed by other documents particularly the 
emerging Salford Local Plan and Greater Manchester Spatial Framework. The 
key issues raised predominantly relate to the potential impact on open spaces 
from proposed housing allocations and the review of existing Green Belt 
boundaries.

3 KEY CHANGES FOLLOWING PUBLIC CONSULTATION

3.1 Responses received during the public consultation period have informed the 
revised Greenspace Strategy SPD. Minor changes have been made to the 
content of the SPD that can be summarised as:

 Reflecting emerging recreation policies in Salford’s Revised Draft Local 
Plan (consultation draft, November 2018);

Page 15



4

 Expanding the multi-functional benefits of open spaces with additional 
focus on their value towards art and cultural activities, and for wooded 
areas to moderate extreme summer temperatures;

 Further acknowledgement that land availability in specific areas limits 
the ability to improve access to different types of provision;

 Greenspace to be designed to maximise access to all members of the 
public, and considering opportunities to incorporate natural play;

 Expanding the guidance on improving connectivity of pedestrian and 
cycling routes; and

 Highlighting the contributions that individuals, local groups and sports 
clubs can make to open spaces.

3.2 The latest version of the open space chapter of the Infrastructure Delivery 
Plan will be published at the same time and then updated regularly. This has 
also been updated to reflect changes, in particular to the status of sites and 
recent enhancements to facilities which include:

 Details of Salford Greenspace Audit 2017-18 with results and analysis 
of overall open space in the city;

 Site based details, including priorities identified by the latest playing 
pitch strategy 2018;

 New Natural Greenspace at Cutacre Country Park, Little Woolden Moss 
(nearly 100ha), and Cleavley Nursery;

 New sports pitches and a wetland area (14ha) to the north of the Old 
Racecourse Playing Fields with new cycle and footpath routes; 

 Peel Park, East Salford becomes a District Park following significant 
Heritage Lottery funding; and

 Duncan Mathieson Playing Fields has been added as a proposed site 
for extensive sports pitch enhancements on the basis that significant 
funding will be required. 

4 RECOMMENDATION

4.1 It is recommended that Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel:

I) Note the contents of the revised Greenspace Strategy Supplementary 
Planning Document which is proposed for adoption and comment on the 
report.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
 City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004 – 2016: Saved Policies
 City of Salford Revised Draft Local Plan

COMMUNITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

Page 16



5

A Community Impact Assessment of the revised Greenspace Strategy has been 
reviewed following the public consultation to inform the final version of the SPD. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: LOW

The SPD has been reviewed to reflect changes since it was adopted in 2006 
including updated demand evidence and emerging policies of Salford Revised Draft 
Local Plan.  

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

The costs associated with the revised Greenspace Strategy SPD are very limited in 
scale (associated with minimal printing of the document) and will be met from existing 
revenue budgets.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Stephanie Hall, Senior Solicitor (0161 234 
3094)

The legislative requirements for the preparation and adoption of a SPD have been 
complied with.

There is a risk that the adoption of the SPD could be challenged by way of an 
application for judicial review.  In the event that the SPD is adopted, and an 
application for planning permission is refused on the basis that the applicant has 
failed to meet the requirements of the SPD, there is a risk of an appeal.  This report 
and the consultation statement referred to in it set out the reasons for the 
requirements set out in the SPD.  The evidence base would be used to defend any 
such challenge or appeal, but there is a risk that the court, a planning inspector or the 
Secretary of State could find against the Council.  Such a finding could allow 
development to take place otherwise than in accordance with the policies in the SPD 
and would likely necessitate a review of the greenspace strategy for the City.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Martin Anglesey, Finance Officer (0161 
793 3248)

The adoption (proposal) of the Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning 
Document and Salford Infrastructure Delivery Plan Open Space Chapter provide 
guidance policy and as such, no specific financial implications are resulting from 
these at this time.

Funding for refurbishments highlighted within the Open Space Chapter is reliant upon 
securing external funding to deliver the proposals, particularly Section 106 
contributions and grant funding.  Financial implications related to specific projects will 
be assessed as part of the normal decision making process.

Page 17



6

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: The review of the Greenspace Strategy 
SPD has been prepared in close liaison with colleagues across Environment and 
Community Safety Directorate, Regeneration, Public Health and Salford Community 
Leisure.

CONTACT OFFICERS: Steve Davey TEL NO: 0161 793 3762
Annie Surtees TEL NO: 0161 925 1153

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ALL

Page 18



Briefing Note for Members, November 2018
Adoption of Salford Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning Document

Contact Officers: steve.davey@salford.gov.uk or annie.surtees@salford.gov.uk 1

BACKGROUND
The new Greenspace Strategy will be adopted by the city council subject to approval 
by Cabinet. It will guide future enhancements and be a material consideration for 
proposals affecting open spaces. The adopted Greenspace Strategy Supplementary 
Planning Document (2006) has proved very successful at facilitating the protection 
and enhancement of greenspaces across Salford. It has guided significant 
investment in facilities, improving access to local recreation standards. 

KEY DOCUMENTS UPDATED IN 2018
Salford Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

 Supplements saved policies of Salford Unitary Development Plan; and 
 Provides additional recreation policies and guidance.

Salford Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) Open Space Chapter
 Details current sites that meet Salford’s local recreation standards; and
 Proposals for refurbished and new facilities, including estimated costs.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION
Extensive public consultation included briefings for all ward members. Comments 
were varied from the 41 individuals and organisations who responded, resulting in 
minor changes to the documents, with particular focus on: 

 Protecting existing assets and facilities;
 Maximising the multi-functional benefits of green infrastructure;
 Individual site and area specific issues; and
 Green Belt boundaries and other issues which will be most relevant to the 

emerging Salford Local Plan and Greater Manchester Spatial Framework. 

KEY CHANGES TO THE GREENSPACE STRATEGY 
 New local standards for allotments, local nature reserves and woodland; 
 Focus on providing play areas in parks and large open spaces;
 Additional focus on the multi-functional benefits of open spaces for art and 

cultural activities, and for wooded areas to moderate extreme temperatures;
 Maximising alternative opportunities where land availability limits provision;
 Maximising access to all members of the public, and considering natural play;
 Improving connectivity of pedestrian and cycling routes; and
 Highlighting contributions from individuals, local groups and sports clubs.

The open space chapter of the IDP has updated site information with details of: 
 Salford Greenspace Audit 2017-18 with results and analysis;
 Recent enhancements to facilities at a wide range of sites including Peel Park, 

Cutacre Country Park, Little Woolden Moss and new sports pitches, routes 
and a wetland area to the north of the Old Racecourse Playing Fields; and

 New proposals at Duncan Mathieson Playing Fields for extensive sports pitch 
enhancements on the basis that significant funding will be required.

TIMESCALES AND NEXT STEPS
 29 October 2018 – Informal Lead Member Briefing
 27 November 2018 – Cabinet Briefing  / 11 December 2018 Cabinet
 Annual progress report detailing the uses of s106 and match funding
 A Green Infrastructure SPD will be drafted for public consultation in the future, 

with wider scope and focus to support relevant chapters of Salford Local Plan.

Page 19

mailto:steve.davey@salford.gov.uk
mailto:annie.surtees@salford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



11/19/2018 

1 

Salford Greenspace Strategy 

Supplementary Planning Document 

- Proposed for Adoption (Cabinet)  

Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 

Monday 26 November 2018 

Positive Impact of the Greenspace Strategy 

Very successful since original adoption in 2006 at: 
 

 Protecting open spaces; 

 Improving the range and quality of facilities – parks, 

play areas, allotments, sports hubs, nature areas;  

 Improving access to local recreation standards –

Now 96% access to a District Park (2006, only 21%) 

 Targeting open space contributions to key sites; and 

 Bringing disused sites back into active uses. 

 … but lots of work still to do! 

 

Page 21



11/19/2018 

2 

Access to District Parks in 2018 versus 2006 

Castle Irwell Flood Basin: New Sports 

Pitches, Wetland Area & Recreation Routes 

Page 22



11/19/2018 

3 

Play Areas 

Other Outdoor Sports 

District Parks 

Allotments 

Key Documents updated in 2018 

The city council has reviewed and updated: 
 

Salford Greenspace Strategy SPD 

 Expands on saved policies of Salford Unitary Development 

Plan;   

 Provides additional recreation policies and guidance; and 

 Identifies three new local recreation standards.  
 

Salford Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) Open Space Chapter 

 Greenspace Audit 2017/18 – analysis by type and area 

 Sites that meet Salford’s local recreation standards including 

recent enhancements around the city; and 

 Site specific proposals for refurbished and new facilities with 

estimated costs. New proposals at Duncan Mathieson PF. 

 

Page 23



11/19/2018 

4 

Public Consultation – Revised Strategy (2017) 

 Four Member briefings prior to the public consultation; 

 1,956 individuals and organisations contacted directly 

(planning consultee database); and 

 Documents available on the city council’s website (with an 

interactive map) and at selected public buildings. 

 

Forty-one varied comments received, generally focussing on:  

 Protecting and improving existing assets and facilities; 

 Maximising multi-functional benefits of green infrastructure; 

 Individual site and area specific issues; and 

 Green Belt boundaries and housing issues - most relevant to 

the emerging Salford Local Plan and Greater Manchester 

Spatial Framework.  

 

Greenspace Strategy - Key changes 

 New local standards for allotments, local nature 

reserves and woodland; 

 Providing play areas in parks and large open spaces; 

 Additional focus on the multi-functional benefits of open 

spaces for art and cultural activities, and for wooded 

areas to moderate extreme temperatures; 

 Maximising alternative opportunities where land 

availability limits provision; 

 Maximising access to all members of the public; and 

 Improving connectivity of pedestrian and cycling routes. 

 

Page 24



11/19/2018 

5 

Timescales and Next Steps 

Date Meeting / Action 

29 October 2018 Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development and Lead 

Member for Environment & Community Safety – revised strategy 

supported by Lead Members at Informal Joint Briefing 

26 November 2018 Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 

27 November 2018 Cabinet Briefing  

11 December 2018  Cabinet – Proposed Adoption 

2019 onwards Annual progress report – to identify recent enhancements 

resulting from s106 and match funding. 

To be confirmed A Green Infrastructure SPD will be drafted for public consultation, 

with wider scope and focus to support relevant chapters of 

Salford Local Plan. 

Ongoing Regular review of the Open Space chapter of the Infrastructure 

Delivery Plan (site based information), linked to member 

consultation on proposed uses of s106 funding. 

Any Questions? 

 Planning Policy 

- Steve Davey 

- E: steve.davey@salford.gov.uk 

- T: 0161 793 3762 
 

 Parks & Street Scene Manager 

- Annie Surtees 

- E: annie.surtees@salford.gov.uk 

- T: 0161 925 1153 
 

 Planning Obligations (s106) 

- Tony Melia 

- E: tony.melia@salford.gov.uk 

- T: 0161 793 2063 

 

Page 25

mailto:steve.davey@salford.gov.uk
mailto:annie.surtees@salford.gov.uk
mailto:tony.melia@salford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

BRIEFING ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO 

CHAIR OF THE GROWTH AND PROPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL

On the 
26th November 2018

TITLE:   Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: Update on Local Air Quality Modelling
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

THAT: The attached report to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority is 
reviewed and that Members take the opportunity to discuss the matter.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Since 2010 the UK Government has produced three successive Air Quality Plans to 
reduce NO2 by requiring local authorities to reduce emissions from road transport.

Environmental campaigning law firm ClientEarth has successfully challenged these 
Air Quality Plans in the UK High and Supreme Courts for failing to include the 
actions necessary to achieve NO2 Limit Values “in the shortest possible time”. The 
Courts have clarified that any steps taken must not just be possible but likely to meet 
the required values.

Each successful legal challenge has increased the number of local authorities 
directed to take action, with over 60 local authorities now under a direction:

 2015: Birmingham Derby, Leeds, Nottingham and Southampton.
 2017: 23 local authorities – including Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Salford,
 Stockport, Tameside and Trafford.
 2018: 33 further local authorities, including Oldham.

The 8 GM authorities, issued with a Direction are required to produce a feasibility 
study and submit the Outline Business Case for local a Clean Air Plan by 31st 
December 2018.  In doing so they must identifying how they intend to ensure 
compliance with the nitrogen dioxide (NO2) legal limit in the shortest possible time, 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



2

by identifying technically feasible measures and using a charging clean air zone as a 
benchmark. 

A requirement of the feasibility study is to determine the extent by which the NO2 
limit would be exceeded in 2021, if no further intervention was made (“do minimum”).

Greater Manchester’s ten local authorities have chosen to take a GM-wide approach 
to producing a Clean Air Plan. The purpose of this is to ensure that, as far as 
possible, the Clean Air Plan complements other GM-wide strategies including the 
existing GM Air Quality Action Plan and GM Low Emission Strategy. This approach 
should also avoid introducing measures in one part of the conurbation that simply 
displace NO2 concentrations to other locations.

TfGM, on behalf of the 10 GM authorities, is producing a feasibility study for the 
whole of the conurbation, not just those served with a Direction.  

The attached report outlines the results of local modelling which is one element of 
the feasibility Study and will underpin the resulting Greater Manchester Clean Air 
Plan.  The local modelling has identified 152 non-compliant stretches of roads (road 
links) across all 10 GM authorities, excluding any exceedances on the Strategic 
Road Network (Motorways and trunk roads).  Showing a greater number and wider 
distribution of exceedances and higher concentrations of NO2 than those initially 
identified by Government. 

The process for determining the areas where action should be targeted, also known 
as “Target Determination”. GM submitted the results of its local modelling to 
Government’s Joint Air Quality Unit (JAQU), the Government team with responsibility 
for Clean Air in summer 2018. Following review by JAQU and an Independent 
Technical Review Panel, the local model process has been accepted as the 
reference for determining compliance with the legal Limit Values.  Those areas are 
identified in Appendix 3 of the report.

The report also summarises the range of Clean Air Plan measures that are under 
consideration in accordance with Government guidance; and the clear requests for 
policy and funding support that have been made of Government in advance of 
determining the draft Plan for Greater Manchester.

The Government has allocated £255 million for Implementation Funding and £220 
million to a Clean Air Fund to facilitate implementation across the UK.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: Update on 
Local Air Quality Modelling

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 28



3

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Greater Manchester Low Emission Strategy and Air 
Quality Action Plan 2016

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

N/A 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low this is a GMCA Report that has been subject to legal 
review

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  N/A

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

CONTACT OFFICER:    Lynda Stefek 0161 686 6201
                                    

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

DETAILS:

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

1 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

 
 
Date:  26 October 2018 
 
Subject: Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: Update on Local Air Quality Modelling 

Report of: Councillor Alex Ganotis, Greater Manchester Green City Lead and Leader of 
Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council 

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

This report contains the results of one element of the feasibility study that will underpin the 
forthcoming Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: the local modelling of predicted roadside 
nitrogen dioxide (NO2) exceedances beyond 2020. Once agreed by Government, these 
exceedances will constitute the problem that the options for reducing NO2 contained in the 
Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan must address.  

The report also summarises the range of Clean Air Plan measures that are under 
consideration in accordance with Government guidance; and the clear requests for policy 
and funding support that have been made of Government in advance of determining the 
draft Plan for Greater Manchester. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

GMCA is requested to:  

(i) Note the outcomes of the local NO2 modelling, particularly that it predicts 
exceedances in all ten Greater Manchester local authority areas beyond 2020; 

(ii) Request that TfGM continues to undertake further analysis of measures for reducing 
NO2 across Greater Manchester to legal Limit Values in the “shortest possible time”, 
as part of preparing the OBC for submission to Government; and  

(iii) Request that the Greater Manchester Mayor and Lead Executive Member take 
Greater Manchester’s ‘asks’ forward with Government, particularly noting the need 
for Government to issue clear instruction to Highways England to implement 
measures which deliver compliance on the Strategic Road Network. 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS: 
Simon Warburton 0161 244 1427 Simon.Warburton@tfgm.com 

 

Page 31



 

 
 

GMCA 20181026] Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: Update 
on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

2 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

 

Comments and/or recommendation from the relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 

Risk Management – N/A 

Legal Considerations – see paragraphs 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 

Financial Consequences – Revenue – N/A  

Financial Consequences – Capital – N/A 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:  
 
16 August 2018 – GM Clean Air Plan Report to HPEOS Committee 
 
‘UK plan for tackling roadside nitrogen dioxide concentrations’, Defra and DfT, 2017 
 

TRACKING/PROCESS  
Does this report relate to a major strategic decision, as set out in 
the GMCA Constitution  
 
 

No 

EXEMPTION FROM CALL IN 
Are there any aspects in this report which 
means it should be considered to be exempt 
from call in by the AGMA Scrutiny Pool on 
the grounds of urgency? 

No 

TfGMC Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

3 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 Whilst air quality has been generally improving over time, certain pollutants remain 
a serious concern in many urban areas – particularly oxides of nitrogen (NOx), 
principally nitrogen dioxide (NO2), and particulate matter (PM).  

1.2 Since 2010 the UK has been in breach of the legal Limit Values regarding levels of 
NO2 in major urban areas. 

1.3 Government Air Quality Plans have delegated responsibility for meeting legal Limit 
Values to local authorities where national Pollution Climate Mapping (PCM) 
modelling predicted concentrations of NO2 on stretches of road would exceed the 
Limit Values beyond certain timeframes. Eight Greater Manchester local authorities 
have been directed to undertake feasibility studies to identify measures for reducing 
NO2 concentrations within the “shortest possible time”. These studies must produce 
a series of business cases for assessing and implementing the relevant measures in a 
Clean Air Plan. 

1.4 The Government has allocated £255 million for Implementation Funding and £220 
million to a Clean Air Fund to facilitate implementation. 

1.5 As part of their feasibility studies, local authorities must gather local evidence and 
conduct local modelling to confirm their NO2 problem and model predicted 
concentrations of NO2 beyond 2020 based on a “do minimum” scenario. This 
scenario is based on historical patterns of vehicle turnover, already planned junction 
improvements, road layout changes etc.  

1.6 This report details the outcomes of the local modelling that has been conducted as 
part of the Greater Manchester feasibility study. This has revealed a wider NO2 
problem than that initially identified by Government. It predicts a greater spatial 
distribution of exceedances and higher concentrations of NO2 than those initially 
identified by Government. Sections of road with concentrations of NO2 over 40 
µg/m3 are located in all 10 Greater Manchester local authorities, in a similar 
distribution to the air quality problems identified in the established Air Quality 
Management Area. 

1.7 Greater Manchester is completing its feasibility study according to Government 
guidelines. Government guidance sets out charging Clean Air Zones (CAZ) as the 
measure most likely to achieve legal Limit Values for NO2 in towns and cities in the 
shortest possible time. A charging Clean Air Zone places a penalty on the most 
polluting vehicles if they enter a designated area. Government guidance specifies 
that local authorities must consider Clean Air Zones as their benchmark measure in 
the feasibility study process as well as any alternative measures that are at least as 
effective at reducing NO2 and deliver compliance as quickly. Further detail of 
Government’s definition of Clean Air Zones is provided in Section 9. 

1.8 Focus groups and an on-street survey have recently been undertaken to understand 
public awareness of air pollution, its sources, and possible remedies. This research 

Page 33



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

4 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

has revealed some confusion about Government-defined Clean Air Zones as 
compared to Congestion Charging. Section 9 details the differing objectives of the 
two types of scheme. 

1.9 At this stage, no decisions have been taken over the options for reducing NO2 in 
Greater Manchester. It is anticipated that a report about the measures will be 
brought forward to the GMCA in December 2018 or January 2019. 

2. INTRODUCTION: AIR QUALITY IN GREATER MANCHESTER 

2.1 Poor air quality is one of the largest public health issues facing the UK. Whilst air 
quality has been generally improving over time, particular pollutants that are not 
generally visible to the naked eye, remain a serious concern in many urban areas. 
These are oxides of nitrogen (NOx), principally nitrogen dioxide (NO2), and 
particulate matter (PM). NO2 is formed from burning fossil fuels and contributes to 
the formation of photochemical smog. Particulates are formed from tyre friction, 
burning fuels that create smoke, construction, industry and other processes. 
Although non-transport sources of NOx are significant, road transport is responsible 
for some 80% of NO2 concentrations at roadside, of which diesel vehicles are the 
largest source. 

2.2 Long-term exposure to elevated levels of particulate matter (PM2.5, PM10) and NO2 
may contribute to the development of cardiovascular or respiratory disease, and 
may reduce life expectancy1. The youngest, the oldest, those living in areas of 
deprivation, and those with existing respiratory or cardiovascular disease are most 
likely to develop symptoms due to exposure to air pollution2,3. One of the issues 
highlighted recently is that people walking or cycling are exposed to lower levels of 
air pollution compared to drivers and passengers inside vehicles travelling along the 
same urban route. Cars take in emissions from surrounding vehicles and recirculate 
pollutants within the confined ‘cabin’ space, exposing occupants to higher levels of 
air pollution4.  

2.3 Current assessments by Public Health England estimate the health and social care 
costs across the England due to population exposure to air pollution will be £5.3 
billion by 2035 for diseases where there is a strong association with air pollution, or 
£18.6 billion for all diseases with evidence of an association with air pollution5. 

                                            
1 Air Quality – A Briefing for Directors of Public Health (2017), https://www.local.gov.uk/air-quality-
briefing-directors-public-health  
2 Air Quality – A Briefing for Directors of Public Health (2017), https://www.local.gov.uk/air-quality-
briefing-directors-public-health 
3 RCP and RCPCH London, Every breath we take lifelong impact of air pollution (2016), 
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-take-lifelong-impact-air-pollution  
4 F. de Leeuw et al., Assessment of personal exposure to particulate air pollution during commuting in 
European cities—Recommendations and policy implications, Science of the Total Environment. 2014; 
785-797. 
5 https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-tool-calculates-nhs-and-social-care-costs-of-air-pollution  

Page 34



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

5 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

2.4 Improving air quality has been one of the key ambitions for Greater Manchester for 
some time. The Greater Manchester Strategy (Oct 2017) states Greater Manchester 
should be ‘a place at the forefront of action on climate change with clean air and a 
flourishing natural environment’ including by ‘reducing congestion and improving air 
quality’. Action is already underway under the Greater Manchester Low Emissions 
Strategy and Air Quality Action Plan, which introduced measures to reduce air 
pollution as a contributor to ill-health; increase behaviours that lower emissions by 
2025; and support the Government to meet EU thresholds for key pollutants at the 
earliest date.  

2.5 Recently, Greater Manchester also signed up to become a World Health Organisation 
(WHO) ‘BreatheLife’ city, with the associated aim of achieving WHO air quality 
targets by 2030. Through the C40 Fossil Fuel Free Streets Declaration in June 2018, 
Greater Manchester also committed to transitioning to a zero-emission bus fleet by 
2025.  

2.6 Greater Manchester has also set targets for CO2 emission reduction that exceed 
national ambitions – a reduction of 48% by 2020 (based upon 1990 levels). Greater 
Manchester road transport accounts for 31% of carbon dioxide emissions in the city-
region. Greater Manchester’s local authorities have also committed to eliminating 
fossil fuels by 2050 in a 100% clean energy pledge.  

2.7 However, whilst these targets, strategies and action plans aim to improve air quality 
and pollution in Greater Manchester in the round, the specific breaches of the 
statutory Limit Values for NO2 has prompted a series of court rulings and national Air 
Quality Plans that have implications for local authorities. 

2.8 Since 2017 Greater Manchester has been acting as required by the direction from 
Government to conduct a feasibility study to assess measures for reducing NO2 
concentrations in areas where legal limits are expected to be exceeded beyond 2020. 
This will culminate in a series of business cases for introducing the measures 
identified through a Clean Air Plan. 

3. POLICY BACKGROUND 

3.1 Because of their harm to human health, regulations set legal Limit Values for 
concentrations of certain pollutants in ambient air. The European Ambient Air 
Quality Directive (2008/50/EC) incorporates WHO air quality standards into 
European Law, which was implemented into UK law by the 2010 Air Quality 
Standards Regulations (SI. 2010 No. 1001). The 2010 regulations set legally binding 
limits for concentrations of major air pollutants that affect human health, including 
NO2 and particulates. Regulation 26 of the 2010 Regulations requires the Secretary 
of State to draw up and implement a national air quality plan so as to achieve the 
relevant limit or target value within the “shortest possible time”. The EU has recently 

Page 35



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

6 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

re-stated its aim to achieve full compliance with existing air quality standards ‘by 
2020 at the latest’6. 

3.2 Since 2010 the UK has been in breach of legal Limit Values for NO2 concentrations in 
major urban areas. The Greater Manchester Urban Area Zone is one of 37 monitoring 
zones across the UK where the Department for the Environment, Food and Rural 
Affairs (Defra) modelling of annual mean NO2 concentrations predicts levels that 
exceed statutory Limit Values. GM meets the EU Limit Values for all other pollutants.  

3.3 The EC Directive requires any breach to be addressed by an Air Quality Plan that will 
reduce concentrations to legal Limit Values in the “shortest possible time”.  

4. UK AIR QUALITY PLANS 

4.1 Since 2010 the UK Government has produced three successive Air Quality Plans to 
reduce NO2 by requiring local authorities to reduce emissions from road transport7. 

4.2 Environmental campaigning law firm ClientEarth has successfully challenged these 
Air Quality Plans in the UK High and Supreme Courts for failing to include the actions 
necessary to achieve NO2 Limit Values “in the shortest possible time”. The Courts 
have clarified that any steps taken must not just be possible but likely to meet the 
required values.  

4.3 Each successful legal challenge has increased the number of local authorities 
directed to take action, with over 60 local authorities now under a direction:  

 2015: Birmingham Derby, Leeds, Nottingham and Southampton. 

 2017: 23 local authorities – including Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Salford, 
Stockport, Tameside and Trafford. 

 2018: 33 further local authorities, including Oldham. 

4.4 Government has written to these local authorities directing them to produce a 
feasibility study as set out in the Environmental Act 1995 (Feasibility Study for 
Nitrogen Dioxide Compliance) Air Quality Direction 2017. It should be noted that this 
directive relates only to the roads that local authorities are responsible for, and does 
not direct local authorities to assess or act to reduce NO2 concentrations on the 
Strategic Road Network or motorways managed by Highways England.  

                                            
6 https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/en/TXT/?uri=CELEX:52013DC0918  
7 Each plan has been subject to legal challenge in both European and national courts, and following 
several warnings the UK Government was referred to the European Court of Justice (CJEU) in May 
2018, for repeatedly failing to take the necessary action to address NO2 levels. The CJEU can fine 
Member States that breach legal levels of certain pollutants. The UK High Court and Supreme court 
have also separately ruled that the Government’s actions to address air quality are illegal in that they 
did not contain the scale or urgency of action required to bring NO2 concentrations below legal levels 
“within the shortest possible time”. 

Page 36



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

7 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

4.5 Defra and the Department for Transport (DfT) have defined the feasibility study 
process local authorities are following in the ‘Clean Air Zone Framework’ (Defra, 
2017) and the ‘UK plan for tackling roadside nitrogen dioxide exceedances’ (Defra 
and DfT, 2017) – referred to herein as the National Plan. Government also set up the 
Joint Air Quality Unit (JAQU) to deliver the National Plan by closely guiding local 
authorities through the feasibility study process.  

4.6 The study must produce a series of business cases for assessing and implementing 
the relevant measures. The Government has allocated £255 million Implementation 
Funding and £220 million for a Clean Air Fund. Local authorities will be allocated 
Implementation Funding based on their Final Business Case. Local authorities will bid 
to the Clean Air Fund for support to help local people, businesses and other groups 
to switch to cleaner vehicles or make alternative travel choices. 

5. GREATER MANCHESTER FEASIBILITY STUDY AND CLEAN AIR PLAN 

5.1 Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) has been coordinating a GM feasibility 
study on behalf of the GMCA and the ten Greater Manchester local authorities. TfGM 
has been working closely with all the local authorities, who remain legally 
responsible for reducing NO2 to legal Limit Values.    

5.2 The purpose of taking a Greater Manchester-wide approach is to avoid introducing 
measures in one part of the conurbation that simply displace pollution to other 
locations, and to ensure that (as far as possible) the eventual Clean Air Plan 
complements other Greater Manchester strategies including the existing Air Quality 
Action Plan and Low Emission Strategy. 

5.3 A Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan Senior Leadership Steering Group (Steering 
Group) is responsible for guiding the feasibility study, briefing senior officers and 
elected members in their respective organisations and securing local approvals. 
Members include Directors or Assistant Directors from each local authority and 
senior representatives from Highways England, Public Health England, AGMA, Local 
Partnerships and TfGM. 

5.4 One step in the feasibility study is called ‘Initial Evidence and ‘Target Determination’, 
in which local modelling is carried out to validate the NO2 exceedances initially 
identified in the national modelling. 

6. INITIAL EVIDENCE AND TARGET DETERMINATION 

6.1 The National Plan identified eleven areas of road, across seven local authorities 
within Greater Manchester, where the national Pollution Climate Model predicts 
NO2 concentrations are likely to exceed the statutory NO2 annual mean EU Limit 
Value beyond 2020. Oldham were added in a later supplement to the National Plan 
(March 2018). 

Page 37



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

8 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

6.2 As the predictions in the national model are based on national scale assumptions and 
datasets, they must be verified against local evidence before any detailed 
assessment of options for reducing NO2. Subsequently, during their feasibility 
studies, local authorities must submit ‘Initial Evidence’ to define and confirm the 
local air quality problem and model concentrations of NO2 in 2021 based on a “do 
minimum” scenario. This scenario is based on historical patterns in vehicle turnover 
and already planned junction improvements, changes to road layout etc. The Greater 
Manchester authorities submitted their ‘Initial Evidence’ to Government in June 
2018. A list of the additional local data used is included in Appendix 1. 

6.3 It should be noted that the local modelling includes all local roads within GM, 
whereas PCM modelling that underpins the National Plan includes only major urban 
roads. 

7. RESULTS OF LOCAL MODELLING 

7.1 Whilst the local model is generally in agreement with the Pollution Climate Model 
exceedances, it reveals a bigger problem than that initially identified by Government. 
It predicts a greater spatial distribution of NO2 exceedances across roads in Greater 
Manchester and higher concentrations of NO2 in specific locations. 

7.2 Local modelling identified 152 stretches of road (road links) where concentrations of 
NO2 are forecast to exceed the legal Limit Value (40 µg/m3) beyond 2020. 112 of 
these road links are on the national PCM model, which have the highest car use and 
heavy freight flows. 40 of these are shorter stretches of local roads, around town 
centres across Greater Manchester. These are routes that are frequently used by 
buses and vans, which are not included in the national model.  

7.3 These road links are distributed across all 10 Greater Manchester local authorities, 
in a similar distribution to the air quality problems identified in the established Air 
Quality Management Area. This means stretches of road where concentrations of 
NO2 are predicted to exceed legal Limit Values beyond 2020 are found in all 10 
Greater Manchester local authorities. 

7.4 Local modelling also predicts stronger concentrations of NO2 in locations across 
Greater Manchester. This means the concentration of NO2 in the air at roadside is 
higher (worse) than originally predicted by Government.  

7.5 The reasons for this are the vehicles using Greater Manchester’s roads are typically 
older than the national average (especially buses and taxis); that local traffic data 
showed that in some areas vehicles are moving more slowly than the national 
modelling anticipated; and because local modelling also showed higher background 
concentrations of NO2. 

7.6 Background concentrations of NO2 come from sources including domestic fuel 
burning; industry; and non-road mobile machinery. However, as transport is the 

Page 38



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

9 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

primary source of NO2 at roadside, this is considered the primary means of dealing 
with exceedances and is the target of the National Plan. 

7.7 In addition, higher concentrations of NO2 were identified in the regional centres 
(particularly Manchester city centre) due to the volume of demand on these roads, 
and also in part due to something referred to as the ‘canyon effect’. This term refers 
to the reduced air flow and circulation caused by tall buildings or in densely built up 
areas that acts to reduce the diffusion and dissipation of air pollutants that occurs in 
more open or low-rise locations.  

7.8 Appendix 2 provides a summary table of the road links across Greater Manchester 
forecast to be in exceedance beyond 2020 in the Initial Evidence (by road type). 

7.9 Appendix 3 contains a high level map of the exceedance points. This map also 
includes identified road links where NO2 levels were just below the legal Limit Value, 
and therefore are considered at risk.   

7.10 It should be noted that these maps do not include the exceedances on the Strategic 
Road Network and motorways that are managed by Highways England. Highways 
England have not been directed to act to reduce NO2 on these roads under the same 
directive as local authorities. Highways England is currently assessing sections of the 
road network around GM to explore potential measures. 

8. CONFIRMING TARGET AREAS FOR ACTION 

8.1 After receiving the ‘Initial Evidence’ from Greater Manchester, JAQU undertook a 
process called ‘Target Determination’, which involves comparing the outputs of the 
local and national modelling, verifying the local modelling process and then agreeing 
the forecast exceedances. JAQU also ensure consistent approaches to local 
modelling are being used by different local authorities.  

8.2 The outcome of this process is an agreement of the NO2 exceedances that Greater 
Manchester must resolve when determining possible solutions. Once the Greater 
Manchester modelling is agreed by Government, illegal exceedances in all ten GM 
local authority areas need to be addressed.   

8.3 The ‘Target Determination’ process is ongoing and Greater Manchester is responding 
to final requests for clarification from JAQU at this stage. JAQU have confirmed they 
anticipate no material changes, and so Greater Manchester can proceed with 
confidence with the remaining elements of the feasibility study. 

9. POSSIBLE OPTIONS FOR REDUCING NO2 EXCEEDANCES 

9.1 The first output of the Greater Manchester feasibility study was the Strategic Outline 
Case (SOC) that was approved by the ten GM local authorities and submitted to 
Government in March 2018. In this document a long-list of 96 options was presented 

Page 39



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

10 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

and sifted to a shortlist of 17 based on Government’s Primary Success Criteria 
(reduction of NO2 concentrations in the “shortest possible time”).  

9.2 Government guidance sets out charging Clean Air Zones (CAZ) as the measure most 
likely to achieve legal Limit Values for NO2 in towns and cities in the shortest possible 
time. A charging Clean Air Zone places a penalty on the most polluting vehicles if they 
enter a designated area. Government guidance specifies that local authorities must 
consider Clean Air Zones as their benchmark measure in the feasibility study process 
as well as any alternative measures that are at least as effective at reducing NO2 and 
deliver compliance as quickly. 

9.3 Government specifies four classes of CAZ that apply penalties to different types of 
vehicle that are classified as non-compliant because they fall below particular euro 
emission standards. Cleaner vehicles are unaffected. 

 Class A: Buses, coaches, taxis and private hire vehicles. 

 Class B: Buses, coaches, heavy goods vehicles (HGVs) taxis and private hire 
vehicles. 

 Class C: Buses, coaches, HGVs, large vans, minibuses, small vans/ light 
commercials, taxis and private hire vehicles.  

 Class D: Buses, coaches, HGVs, large vans, minibuses, small vans/ light 
commercials, taxis and private hire, cars, motorcycles/mopeds. 

9.4 The associated emissions standards are as follows: 

 Euro 3 for motorcycles, mopeds, motorised tricycles and quadricycles. 

 Euro 4 for petrol cars, vans, minibuses and other specialist vehicles. 

 Euro 6 for diesel cars, vans and minibuses and other specialist vehicles. 

 Euro VI for lorries, buses and coaches and other specialist heavy vehicles. 

9.5 A vehicle's Euro emission standard, is shown in the vehicle registration document – 
also known as a V5C.  

9.6 As part of the feasibility study work, focus groups have been undertaken to 
understand public awareness of air pollution, its sources and possible remedies. This 
research has revealed a mixed understanding of air pollution – many are aware that 
air pollution exists but are unaware of the scale of the issue or its impacts on health, 
and also what people can do to reduce emissions and their exposure. The research 
also revealed that there is some confusion between penalties related to air pollution 
and congestion charging.  

9.7 Clean Air Zones differ from Congestion Charging systems because of their very 
different objectives and time-spans. The objective of any penalty in a CAZ is for all 
vehicles which drive in a Clean Air Zone to have engines which comply with emissions 
standards set out at 9.4 above. A CAZ does not seek to reduce the number of vehicles 
on roads. This also means as vehicles are upgraded the number of penalties levied 

Page 40



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

11 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

reduces are therefore relatively short-term and only apply to non-compliant 
vehicles. Under a Congestion Charge, the requirement to pay applies to all vehicles, 
is enduring, and creates a long-term revenue stream. CAZ typically make a loss, 
particularly in the later years the zones are in place. 

9.8 These differences are summarised in Appendix 4. 

9.9 In recent on-street polling conducted to assess how Greater Manchester residents 
currently think about air pollution as an issue, 68% of the 400 respondents felt that 
personal action could have some impact in reducing air pollution, and 58% were 
already taking some sort of action to reduce air pollution. However, this survey and 
a series of focus groups undertaken revealed there was a varied level of 
understanding about the impacts of air pollution on health and different groups of 
people, and a lack of understanding about the seriousness of the air quality problem 
in Greater Manchester. This suggests public awareness raising about these issues 
should be a priority.  

9.10 The shortlist of measures that was agreed at the time for inclusion in the SOC in 
March is displayed in Table 1, which included variations of Government’s benchmark 
measure, as well as measures that could be used as an alternative or in combination.  

Table 1. Shortlisted Measures 

Shortlisted measure Details 
Retrofit/upgrade public 
transport fleet 

Retrofit or upgrade vehicles to a higher Euro standard. 

Retrofit/upgrade local 
authority fleets 

Retrofit or upgrade to a higher Euro standard 
(procurement). 

Increase public transport 
capacity 

Identify specific routes where most impact will be made, 
with a particular focus on the role that an attractive bus 
system would need to play in achieving significant 
additional modal shift in the near term. 

Switch Bus/HGV/LGV/GM fleet 
to GtL 

Using cleaner alternative fuels, e.g. Gas-to-Liquid (GtL). 

Electric vehicle (EV) 
incentivisation 

Increase EV uptake through expanding the charging 
network or financial incentives. 

Differential parking charges E.g. different charges for times of day, vehicle type, car-
sharers and could include a workplace parking levy. 

Congestion Deal – increase 
capacity 
 

Review existing junction improvement plans – assess 
impact and identify opportunities to accelerate. 

Congestion Deal – encouraging 
alternatives 

Encouraging alternative travel choices through road 
space reallocation. 

Congestion Deal – network 
management 

Changing traffic signal timing to optimise flows, reducing 
congestion. 

Page 41



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

12 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

Shortlisted measure Details 
Private hire and taxi 
alternative fuels 

Incentivise change to EV/Ultra-Low-Emission vehicles, 
increase EV infrastructure for taxis, retrofitting and 
increasing LPG refuelling infrastructure for taxis. 

Communications campaigns Increase awareness of health and cost benefits for 
public and of different modes of transport or around 
particular communities/schools. 

Sustainable travel engagement Work with employers and individuals to encourage 
sustainable travel choices. 

Active travel programme – 
infrastructure 

Expand and improve cycling and walking infrastructure. 

Clean Air Zones – Class B, C or 
D 

Different classifications/time restriction and 
geographical areas to be modelled for their impact on 
NO2 and timescale of any impact. 

9.11 The SOC recognised that as locations of exceedances identified by Government 
covered areas across Greater Manchester, no single measure was likely to deliver 
legal compliance on its own. 

9.12 Implementation costs were not considered in this process (as per Government 
guidance). However, the SOC outlined some of the health and socio-economic 
factors that need to be considered in developing the Clean Air Plan. This reflects the 
significant impact that poor air quality has on people’s lives and local economic 
growth aspirations. 

10. ASSESSING THE OPTIONS FOR GREATER MANCHESTER 

10.1 At this stage, no decisions have been taken over the precise mix of measures that 
will be included in the OBC. However, over the summer a process of refining 
measures and developing a range of options that combine the measures in different 
ways has been undertaken to understand the type and scale of intervention needed 
to reduce NO2 to within legal Limit Values in the “shortest possible time” across 
Greater Manchester.  

10.2 These different options are being assessed in terms of their air quality impact (and 
timeframe of this impact), technical feasibility, cost-benefit and their socio-economic 
impact. This assessment is currently ongoing and its outcomes will be presented in 
the Outline Business Case document. 

10.3 It is anticipated that a report about the OBC will be brought forward in January 2019 
to the Combined Authority and all ten councils. 

10.4 In the locations with the highest level of exceedances, in order to reduce 
concentrations to legal limits, any potential measure would need to reduce road 
traffic emissions comparably to a reduction in the flow of traffic in the order of 10-
30% (although some locations are more complex). 

Page 42



 

GMCA 20181026 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: 
Update on Local Air Quality Modelling v0.15 

13 23/10/2018 14:53 

 

11. GREATER MANCHESTER’S ASKS OF GOVERNMENT 

11.1 In support of and as a precursor of any future Clean Air Plan, the Mayor has written 
on behalf of GM authorities to the Secretary of State for the Environment 
highlighting specific actions needed to support Greater Manchester. These include: 

 Clear arrangements and funding to develop workable, local vehicle scrappage / 
upgrade measures;  

 Short term effective interventions in vehicle and technology manufacturing and 
distribution, led by national Government with local authorities; 

 Replacement of non-compliant buses; and 

 A clear instruction to Highways England to implement measures which deliver 
compliance with legal limits for NO2 on the  strategic road network, for which they 
are responsible, in the shortest possible time.  

11.2 The Greater Manchester Mayor will be meeting with the Secretary of State for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs to discuss these requirements in the near 
future. 

11.3 What is also clear is that an effective, efficient and reliable public transport network 
is fundamental for providing people and businesses with reliable alternatives to car 
travel and a cleaner and more sustainable transport system. A report on delivering 
the next phase of the 2040 Strategy (the 2040 Delivery Plan 2019-2024) will be 
brought to the GMCA that details transport projects that are already funded along 
with a series of other interventions that will be collectively prioritised by the GMCA 
and the districts. The Delivery Plan is intended to complement the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework, the emerging Clean Air agenda and the Low 
Emissions Strategy. 

12. RECOMMENDATIONS 

12.1 Recommendations are set out at the front of this report.  

 

Councillor Alex Ganotis 

Greater Manchester Green City Lead and 
Leader of Stockport Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1: Local Data used in Initial Evidence submitted by Greater 
Manchester 

Based on Government guidance the following local evidence was used to understand 
likely NO2 concentrations in Greater Manchester beyond 2020: 

 Detailed Base Year (2016) and Future Year (2021) transport model (actual 
and future demand on the road network) 

 Local vehicle fleet profiles (e.g. ages and types of vehicle) using Automatic 
Number Plate Recognition data 

 Local background concentrations of NO2  

 More detailed road network & junction data (e.g. alignment and width) 

 Representation of canyons (e.g. tall buildings) 

 Local air quality monitoring data (from across GM) 

 Confirmed future changes to the road network, regional traffic growth and 
changes to the traffic fleet. 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2: Summary of numbers of areas across GM forecast to exceed the 
EU Limit Value beyond 2020 

 
Local 
Authority 

National (PCM) 
Model 

Exceedances 
Links  

Local Model 
Exceedances on 

PCM Links  

Additional Local 
Model 

Exceedances on 
Minor (non-
PCM) Links*  

Bolton 1 12 2 
Bury 1 8 7 
Manchester 4 35 16 
Oldham 0 4 2 
Rochdale 0 7 0 
Salford 1 15 3 
Stockport 2 13 6 
Tameside 1 11 2 
Trafford 1 4 1 
Wigan 0 3 1 
Total 11 112 40 

 

*These are road links that are not included in the national PCM model but have been 
modelled locally. 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



B U R Y R O C H D A L E

O L D H A M

T A M E S I D E

S T O C K P O R T

T R A F F O R D

S A L F O R D

W I G A N

B O L T O N

M A N C H E S T E R

Key

GM Boundary
District Boundary
Motorways and trunk roads managed by Highways England*

Predicted annual mean roadside NO₂ concentrations (µg/m³). 
Statutory EU Limit Value is 40µg/m³

40.1 or above – Over legal limit
35.1 to 40 – At risk of exceeding legal limit
35 or below

*Concentrations not included as out of scope for the GM Clean Air Plan

Predicted annual mean nitrogen dioxide (NO₂) concentrations 
for the Greater Manchester local road network in 2021

BURY
town centre

BOLTON
town centre

WIGAN
town centre

ROCHDALE
town centre

STOCKPORT
town centre

MIDDLETON

OLDHAM
town

centre

LEIGH

ASHTON-
UNDER-LYNE

MANCHESTER
city centre
MANCHESTER
city centre

SALFORD
city

centre

SALFORD
city

centre

STRETFORD HYDE

ALTRINCHAM

MANCHESTER
AIRPORT

WYTHENSHAWE

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 OS 0100022610. Use of this data is subject to terms
and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive, royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the

Licensed Data for non-commercial purposes for the period during which Transport for Greater
Manchester makes it available; you are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or

otherwise make available the Licensed Data to third parties in any form; and third party rights to
enforce the terms of this licence shall be reserved to Ordnance Survey.

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4: Differences between Congestion Charging and Clean Air and Low Emission Zones 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Congestion Charging

Objective: ensure drivers pay the cost they 
impose on others

Charge applies to all vehicles (with some 
discounts and exemptions applied)

Schemes are designed so that some people 
switch, but most stay and pay (eg: in central 

London, 15% reduction in traffic in Year 1)

Core goal is to reduce congestion (eg 30% 
reduction in Central London in Year 1) with 

wider benefits to air quality, safety etc

Highly profitable, providing resources to 
invest in public transport, active travel and 

other complementary measures

Clean Air or Low 
Emission Zone

Objective: persuade drivers to upgrade their 
vehicle to a cleaner model

Any penalty applies only to non-compliant 
vehicles, compliant vehicles are unaffected

Designed so that most people upgrade their 
vehicle and do not pay 

Core goal is to improve air quality and 
reduce emissions by cleaning up the vehicle 

fleet

Typically make a loss, especially in later years

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

22nd October 2018  
 

Meeting commenced: 6.00 p.m. 
       “               ended: 8.10 p.m. 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Lewis  –  in the Chair 

Councillors R.Garrido, Jolley, Lindley, Mashiter, Ord, Weir and M. Wheeler 
 

Councillor Kelly  –  Lead Member for Housing & Neighbourhoods 
 
OFFICERS: Ben Dolan   –  Strategic Director Place 
  Andrew Leigh   – Head of Housing Strategy 
  Claire Edwards  – Democratic Services 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
  Graeme Langton }  Resident, Pendleton Tower Block 
  Mark Norris  } 
  Mari Eccles  -  Manchester Evening News 
  Ewan Quayle  -  Salford Now 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Critchley, Dickman, Pevitt and  
P. Wilson, and on behalf of Councillor Merry. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Councillor R. Garrido declared an interest in respect of items 3 (Tower Block Fire Safety Update) and 
5 (Update on the Review of Salford’s Housing Allocations Policy) due to him being a member of the 
ForViva Board. 
 
Councillor Kelly declared an interest in respect of item 5 (Update on the Review of Salford’s Housing 
Allocations Policy) due to her being a member of the Derive Board. 

 
3. TOWER BLOCK FIRE SAFETY UPDATE 

 
Ben Dolan reported on developments that had taken place since the last meeting, in particular, 
Pendleton Together having secured funding for the removal and replacement of cladding over the 
nine tower blocks in Pendleton, along with other fire related works.  This had followed the 
government having refused to allow the Council to lend the required funds to the Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) contractor responsible for the blocks and having also made it clear that the PFI 
contractor was not eligible to receive support from the £400m national pot set up to help housing 
associations and councils address the national fire safety crisis.  Ben Dolan indicated that meetings 
were now taking place on a regular basis in order to ensure that the final replacement cladding 
solution was the correct one.  He stated that the Council was continuing to work closely with 
Pendleton Together with the intention of a new timetable for the works being confirmed in the near 
future.  In the meantime, the fire safety measures would remain in place on all the tower blocks. 
 
Ben Dolan provided responses to the issues that had been raised by residents at the previous 
meeting as follows – 
 
� Faulty windows including an incident that had invol ved a window falling out onto the 

ground. 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



Since the last meeting, Pendleton Together had informed the Council that a programme of repair 
to identified faults on windows was due to commence on 22nd October 2018.  An investigation 
into the reasons behind the faults was still in progress and Pendleton Together would issue 
further guidance to residents when this had been completed.  Pendleton Together had confirmed 
that there had not been any reports of windows having fallen out onto the ground.  All balconies 
were fitted with toughened safety glass and balcony door glazing was laminated on the inside.  
The handle mechanism was different on Spruce Court and the safety guidance was therefore 
different for this block. 
 

� The Trident Safety Report and why it had not been m ade available to residents. 
 
Following the tragic fire at Grenfell, Pendleton Together had appointed Trident as their fire safety 
experts to review the refurbishment and ongoing safety practices at the nine tower blocks in 
Pendleton in order to develop a programme of required fire safety works that responded to 
government building safety advice and ongoing liaison with Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 
Service.   
 
In order to develop a programme of required works, Trident and Pendleton Together had carried 
out survey work to the blocks and had identified and tested a replacement cladding system.  An 
outline of the proposed work had been shared with residents in May 2018.  Newsletters 
summarising the proposals had been shared with residents in June 2018. 
 
Whilst there is no Trident Report, any correspondence and information relating to Trident findings 
had been shared with the Council under legal privilege as the information was subject to legal 
action against the original building contractor. 
 
The Council and Pendleton Together were continuing to provide updates to residents and were 
hoping to share further information with regard to the proposed programme of required fire safety 
works in due course.  Pendleton Together had offered Mr. Langton access to Trident staff to ask 
questions about the programme of fire safety work.   
  

� The NIBE Heating System.  It had been reported that  residents were too afraid to turn on 
their heating because of the cost.  Marie Landon fr om Fuel Poverty Action had expressed 
concern regarding the situation in Salford and the impact that heating problems, 
particularly for those who don’t have cladding and insulation on their blocks, could have 
on residents’ health. 
 
Ben Dolan referred to Councillor Merry having previously offered to meet with a representative 
from Fuel Poverty Action to discuss their concerns and indicated that Councillor Merry’s offer to 
meet with Fuel Poverty Action remained open. 
 
In addition, Ben Dolan referred to a press release, detailed below, that had been issued by 
Pendleton Together, in response to similar queries that had been raised regarding the efficiency 
of the NIBE units – 
 
‘Pendleton Together residents are feeling the benefit of their NIBE heating systems and we have 
seen a reduction in calls for assistance.  We are not working on any current complaints.  This is 
thanks to our commitment to support all tenants with resolving any issues through individual 
visits, 31 this year, and a series of videos, available from 
https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/your-home/manage-your-home/nibe-boiler-user-guides/ 
 
In addition to the demonstrations and efficiency advice given to tenants on visits, we have an 
annual servicing programme where residents can raise any ongoing concerns and we do all we 
can to help them reduce their energy bills. 
 
Our experience has shown that in most cases investigated, there are two reasons for higher bills.  
Firstly, there can be ongoing issues with the residents’ energy provider.  Secondly, some 
residents are trying to use the NIBE system in the same way they used the previous gas boiler 

Page 54



and hot water systems.  This is an inefficient way to use the NIBE system which relies on being 
on permanently to get the best and most cost effective results. 
 
To ensure our residents get the value for money service we have proactively established a 
continuous remote monitoring programme in a number of homes to ensure that the NIBE 
systems are working as planned.  This monitoring data shows an average annual running cost of 
£546 for a two bedroom flat using a NIBE (based on £0.14p per kWh).  These running costs are 
for the entire utility bills and including the electricity used for domestic goods – TVs, fridges or 
microwaves.  This is £200 cheaper than Ofgem estimate for running a 1-2 bed property is £750 
per year.  One resident achieved desired heating and hot water comfort levels in their home, 
paying only £400 a year for their energy bill. 
 
We would encourage any resident who has any issue with their NIBE system to get in touch with 
Pendleton Together.  This can be done by phone at 0300 555 5567, email at 
thg.pendletontogether@togetherhousing.co.uk or face to face at our Brotherton House Office.’ 

 
� Outstanding Freedom of Information Requests. 
 

The Panel noted that any outstanding Freedom of Information Requests would be dealt with 
through that particular process.   

 
The following issues were raised by members of the public in attendance at the meeting and were 
responded to by Ben Dolan as indicated (further responses are included at Appendix 1) – 

 
o Rebecca Long-Bailey MP having been trying, without success, for approximately three 

months, to arrange a meeting with Salford residents  through Pendleton Together.  She 
had recently escalated her request to Salford Counc illors.  What action would be taken 
against Pendleton Together for not complying with t his request? 
 
Ben Dolan had only recently become aware of the frustrations that existed in relation to the 
above matter, which he indicated he would be discussing with Councillor Merry who was now 
leading on the matter. 

 
o An incident that had previously been referred to in volving a window having fallen out onto 

the ground. A resident clarified that the window ha d fallen onto the floor inside a flat and 
details were provided in relation to the location o f the flat and who had been present at the 
time. 

 
Arrangements would be made for the additional information that had now been provided to be 
investigated. 

 
o A number of cracked windows had been reported to Pe ndleton Together.  

 
An investigation in relation to faulty windows was in the process of being undertaken. 
 

o People with disabilities and young families should not be living on high floors in tower 
blocks. 
 
Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service had not raised any concerns in relation to the above 
matter.  Concerns had been raised by individuals which were taken into account through 
Pendleton Together’s management arrangements.  Reference was made to the limited 
availability of alternative accommodation. 
 

o Whether legal action was to be taken by Pendleton T ogether against Keepmoat, the 
contractor that had undertaken the renovation of th e tower blocks in 2015. 
 
Ben Dolan confirmed that litigation was currently pending. 
 

Page 55



o Problems in relation to the lighting on the rear st airs and landings. 

Bulbs had been ‘popping’ more frequently than would be expected and work had been 
undertaken to replace the bulbs in question. 

Discussion took place during which Panel Members made reference to the following – 
 

o The need for investigation to be undertaken with regard to (a) the abovementioned incident 
involving a window having fallen onto the floor inside a flat, and (b) the report that a request from 
Rebecca Long-Bailey MP to Pendleton Together, for a meeting with residents, had not been 
progressed. 
 

o The cost of the cladding removal / replacement and additional fire safety works, estimated at 
approximately £30m at the last meeting, appearing to be high in comparison to works that had 
been undertaken in respect of tower blocks located elsewhere in the city.  Ben Dolan indicated 
that comparisons were unlikely to be comparing like with like in terms of the works that were 
required. 
 

o The need to ensure that costs in respect of snagging and correcting works that had not been 
undertaken properly during the previous refurbishment of the tower blocks were met by the 
original contractor, and not included in the cost of the cladding removal / replacement and fire 
safety works that were to be undertaken.   
 

o Communication with residents and concerns that it appeared that the Council had not been made 
aware of some issues that residents had raised with Pendleton Together.  Reference was made 
to regular communication that was undertaken between Pendleton Together and residents in the 
form of newsletters, surgeries, drop-in sessions, etc.  It was acknowledged that everybody was 
not always in agreement and that residents were understandably frustrated at the length of time 
that it was taking for the works to be undertaken to the tower blocks.  It was indicated that it 
would be appropriate for operational issues not directly connected to the cladding removal  / 
replacement and fire safety works to be dealt with by Pendleton Together. 
 

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the update and discussion be noted with thanks to Ben Dolan for his 
attendance at the meeting. 

(2) THAT investigation be undertaken with regard to (a) the abovementioned incident 

involving a window having fallen onto the floor inside a flat, and (b) the report that a request from 
Rebecca Long-Bailey MP to Pendleton Together, for a meeting to be arranged with residents, had 
not been progressed. 

4. HOUSING STRATEGY REFRESH 

Andrew Leigh presented a report which outlined the work that had been undertaken to date to 
refresh Salford’s Housing Strategy.  Although the existing housing strategy ‘Shaping Housing in 
Salford’ runs to 2020, as a result of significant changes in the housing policy framework in addition to 
local housing markets, a decision had been made to refresh and update Salford’s housing strategy 
now.  The report provided information on some of the key issues and sought comments to inform the 
development of the strategy. 

Discussion took place which included reference to –  

� The need for consideration to be given to the likely impacts that a proposed housing development 
would have on the highway network, school places, health provision, etc., and how they could be 
addressed, rather than proposed developments being considered in isolation.  Consideration of 
the impacts on the surrounding infrastructure and local facilities would be likely to encourage 
public support for proposed housing developments, particularly those on brownfield and infill 
sites. 
 

Page 56



� A substantial number of people in Salford were earning less than £21,000 (the number earning 
less than this amount had grown over 1% since 2014).  In terms of lower quartile house prices 
(£90,500) and private rents (£495), this was less than the required household income to buy 
(£25,857), the required income to rent being £17,640.  
 

� The shortfall of affordable housing provision – whilst 3,488 homes were delivered/committed 
between 2007/21, a calculated shortfall of 760 affordable homes per year up to 2021 remains.  
57% of affordable home delivery has been one and two beds. 
 

� The distribution of affordable housing within new developments.  Members referred to the 
benefits of affordable housing being ‘pepper potted’ through developments, making it less 
identifiable, rather than being clustered together. 
 

� One and two bed properties being required to respond to growth in East Salford and to meet the 
housing register need – with 60% of those on the housing register requiring one bed affordable 
properties (April 2018).  Four bed property turnover on the housing register being minimal and 
more, larger, family affordable homes being required.  Members asked to be provided with details 
of the average and longest wait for each category of housing. 
 

� 68% of planned homes being in Ordsall with housing delivery being concentrated in East Salford 
when housing delivery was also required in the West of the City. 
 

� The need for the strategy to reflect the varied housing markets that exist in different parts of the 
city. 
 

� The likelihood that a substantial number of older people were living in under-occupied properties 
that had previously been the family home.  In many cases, they would prefer to downsize and 
wish to remain in the same neighbourhood, possibly near their families, however, there is a lack 
of availability of suitable properties in the area.  Should they have the option to be housed in a 
way that they find more manageable, this would leave them with more expendable income, 
making them more socially mobile and more likely to live a longer and happier life.  This would 
then increase the availability of larger family homes which would help to meet the need that 
existed for such properties.  Andrew Leigh indicated that consideration would be given to a piece 
of work being undertaken in relation to the scale of under-occupation of properties in the city. 
 

� The increasing number of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs), which had arisen due to the 
shortage of housing provision in the city, and their impact on communities.    
 

� ‘Air B n B’ properties located in the city and their impact on the surrounding neighbourhood.   
 

� With regard to point 2.11on page four of the report - ‘a greater than 1 in 100 year risk of flooding’ 
– reference was made to the impact of the second flood basin and it was agreed that clarification 
would be sought in relation to this matter. 

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the content of the report and discussion be noted with thanks to Councillor Kelly 
and Andrew Leigh for their attendance at the meeting and for providing the Panel with the opportunity to 
be involved in the refresh of the Housing Strategy. 

(2) THAT Members be provided with details of the average and longest wait for each 

category of housing. 

  (3) THAT consideration be given to a piece of work being undertaken to identify the scale 
of under-occupation of properties in the city. 

 

Page 57



5. UPDATE ON THE REVIEW OF SALFORD’S HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY 

Andrew Leigh presented a report which provided an update on the review of Salford’s Housing 
Allocations Policy.  The report indicated that in light of the implementation of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2017 and the new statutory duties that the Act entailed, it was considered good 
practice to review the existing Housing Allocations Policy to ensure that it reflected the new 
requirements of the Act and supported statutory services in delivering their new duties.  The review 
was also considered good practice in light of the three years delivery to date of the existing policy.  
The report set out the work that had been undertaken to date and the next steps for completing the 
review of Salford’s Housing Allocations Policy.  The report also sought Members’ comments on the 
policy.  Members were presented with the outcomes of the consultation that had been undertaken 
(attached at Appendix 2) which had ended on 12th October 2018. 

Discussion took place which included reference to the following – 

� With regard to the Local Connection, it was suggested that consideration be given to whether 
‘Those with other special circumstances’ should include those fleeing violence of any kind. 
 

� With regard to Unacceptable Behaviour – 
 

o With regard to ‘Owing significant current or former tenant arrears amounting to more than 
£200’ – Members questioned whether this amount was appropriate as rent arrears could 
rapidly mount up, for example following a change in circumstances or due to the impact of 
Universal Credit and Welfare Reform. 
 

o With regard to ‘Serious nuisance/annoyance to neighbours resulting in an offence of 
serious anti-social behaviour’ – Members questioned whether any allowances were made 
in respect of vulnerable people who may be receiving input from Social Services or who 
may be being supported in other ways. 

 
� With regard to Refusal of Suitable Offers – 

 
o With regard to ‘Currently, applicants who refuse an offer of accommodation that is 

considered suitable for their needs, without good reason will be removed from the housing 
register, and are able to reapply 12 months later’ – Members established that the 
suitability of the offer and whether there was good reason for refusal were decided by an 
officer, in respect of which an appeal process could be followed.  Members requested that 
consideration be given to a cost benefit analysis being undertaken in relation to a more 
lenient approach – for example, the applicant being able to remain on the housing register 
or being able to reapply six months later. 

 
� With regard to Priority Points – 

 
o Whether it would be appropriate for additional points to be awarded to those wishing to 

downsize their property (for example, according to the number of bedrooms that would be 
released).  It was indicated that consideration would need to be given to possible 
unintended consequences that this could have such as overtaking somebody living in an 
overcrowded property, reducing the availability of one and two bed properties, etc. 

 
o The possibility of recognising good neighbourly behaviour in terms of those who respect 

and contribute to the local community.  Reference was made to the subjectivity that would 
be involved and the opportunity for challenge. 

 
o How priority points were calculated in relation to people with disabilities. 

Page 58



RESOLVED: (1) THAT the content of the report and discussion be noted with thanks to Councillor Kelly 
and Andrew Leigh for their attendance at the meeting, and for providing the Panel with the opportunity to 
be involved in the review of the Housing Allocations Policy.   

(2) THAT consideration be given to the above-mentioned questions and issues raised by 

Panel Members and a response be circulated to Members at the appropriate time. 

6. UPDATE ON CONTRACTUAL ISSUES 
 
This item was withdrawn from the agenda. 
 

7. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24TH SEPTEMBER 2018 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the minutes of the above meeting be agreed as a correct record. 
 

8. DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the Draft Work Programme be noted. 
 

9. ITEM FOR INFORMATION: DEVELOPMENT UPDATE – CITY CENTRE SALFORD 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the Development Update be noted. 
 

10. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
 

� Monday 26th November 2018, 6.00 p.m. (Briefing for Panel Members at 5.45 p.m.) 

 

Page 59



Appendix 1 

Responses to issues raised at the meeting of the 

Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel held on 22nd October 2018 

 

1 
 
 

Rebecca Long-Bailey MP having been trying, without success, for 
approximately three months, to arrange a meeting with Salford residents 
through Pendleton Together. She had recently escalated her request to Salford 
Councillors.  
 
Councillor Merry is meeting in December with Rebecca Long Bailey and Steve Close, 
the Chief Executive of Together Housing, to discuss the ongoing issues of fire safety 
and community engagement. 
 

2 
 
 

An incident that had previously been referred to involving a window having 
fallen out onto the ground. A resident clarified that the window had fallen onto 
the floor inside a flat and details were provided in relation to the location of the 
flat and who had been present at the time. 
 
Pendleton Together had again confirmed that there had not been any reports of 
windows having fallen out onto the ground.  A further allegation was made that a 
window had fallen into a flat in respect of which details were provided. 
 
Pendleton Together have previously reported the vandalism to a balcony where 
shattered glass did marble and fall away as designed.  The tenant below is believed 
to have had the balcony door open at the time but there is no record of a tenant being 
in the flat at the time. 
 

3 
 
 

A number of cracked windows having been reported to Pendleton Together. 
 
Four residents had highlighted issues with their windows.  Pendleton Together 
confirmed that all four tenants had repairs completed and had been provided advice 
regarding the operation of the windows.  There were no outstanding repairs to the 
properties identified.  All repairs should be reported in the normal way through to 
Pendleton Together. 
 
The programme of repair to identified faults on 46 windows has commenced and the 
contractor has gained access to complete repairs to 90% of flats.  The investigation 
into the reasons behind the faults was still in progress and Pendleton Together would 
issue further guidance to residents when this had been completed.   
 

  

 

Page 60



Scrutiny Panel Presentation 

Outcome of a consultation on the review of 
Salford’s Allocations Policy

Andrew Leigh – Head of Housing Strategy

P
age 61



72.12% of respondents 

either agreed or strongly 

agreed with the current 

local connection criteria.

Only 17.7% disagreed or 

strongly disagreed with 

the current local 

connection criteria.

In addition, 1 paper In addition, 1 paper 

response was received 

which disagreed with 

the local connection 

criteria overall.

P
age 62



Q2. Respondents were asked to comment on the local connection 
Criteria:

81 respondents commented on the local connection criteria including 
in particular:

• Armed forces criteria which was raised by 8 respondents
• Employment local connection which was raised by 10 respondents• Employment local connection which was raised by 10 respondents
• Domestic Violence which was raised by 4 respondents

P
age 63



Q.3

71.07% of respondents 

agreed or strongly 

agreed with the 

Policy of restricting 

entry onto the 

register to those 

demonstrating 

unacceptable 

behaviour.behaviour.

Only 22.84 % disagreed 

or strongly disagreed 

with this policy

In addition, 1 paper form 

was received which 

disagreed with the 

policy.

P
age 64



Q.4 Respondents were asked to comment on the policy of restricting entry onto the 
Register to those demonstrating unacceptable behaviour :

87 respondents commented on the registration restrictions placed on those demonstrating 
unacceptable behaviour.

• Arrears/financial issues were raised by 25 respondents
• The £200 arrears cap was commented on by 17 respondents
• Unacceptable behaviour was commented on by 32 respondents

P
age 65



Q.5 and Q6

43.20% of respondents either 

agreed or strongly agreed that 

the current banding system 

works well.

24.26% disagreed or strongly 

disagreed that the banding 

system works well.

In addition, 1 paper form was 

received which neither agreed 

nor disagreed with the 

eligibility criteria.eligibility criteria.

60.58% of respondents either 

agreed or strongly agreed with 

the removal of band A replaced 

by a direct lettings policy

11.18% of respondents either 

disagreed or strongly disagreed 

with the proposal.

In addition, 1 paper form was 

received which neither agreed 

nor disagreed.

In addition to Q6: The proposed removal of band A 
Regeneration, replaced by a direct lettings policy 

P
age 66



Q.7 Respondents were asked to comment on the existing banding system and proposed 
removal of band A replaced by a direct lettings policy:

80 comments were received about the existing banding system and proposed removal of 
band A replaced by a direct lettings policy

• 17 comments were broadly in agreement with the Policy
• 9 comments broadly disagreed with the Policy
• 11 different individual suggestions for changing the banding system were made

P
age 67



Q.8 Respondents were asked to comment on the current policy of rehousing 
regeneration applicants in homes they require rather than like for like 
homes:

39 respondents were generally in favour of this policy –
acknowledging the very short supply of social housing and the need to use this 
rare resource very carefully.

9 respondents were generally in disagreement with this policy –
generally feeling that downsizing to properties required rather than like for like was 
unfair.unfair.

An overarching theme in the majority of responses was that applicants individual 
circumstances needed to be taken into consideration i.e. disabilities affecting 
space/need for equipment or need for an overnight carer, when assessing the size 
of property required.

P
age 68



Q9. 

69.28% of respondents 

agreed with the current 

system for awarding priority 

points.

10.45% either disagreed or 

strongly disagreed with the 

current priority points 

Q9. The award of priority points for a range of issues.

current priority points 

system.

In addition, 1 paper form 

was received which 

disagreed with the award of 

priority points

P
age 69



Q10. Respondents were asked to comment on the current policy of awarding priority 
points to certain cases:

69 respondents commented on this aspect of the policy

There were a range of suggestions from individual respondents for additional criteria which 
could be awarded priority points

P
age 70



Q.11

56.76% of respondents 

either agreed or strongly 

agreed with the 

proposed revised targets 

for advertised properties 

in each band.

14.19% of respondents 

either disagreed or 

strongly disagreed with 

the proposed revised 

targets for advertised 

properties in each band.

In addition, 1 paper form 

which neither agreed 

nor disagreed.

P
age 71



Q.12 Respondents were asked to comment on the proposed changes to the targets for 
advertised properties in each band, if Band A is removed, with equal distribution of 
Band A targets to Band B and C:

40 people responded to this question.

9 respondents were broadly in agreement with the proposal

6 respondents were broadly in disagreement with the proposal

A range of other comments unrelated to this question were raised in this section.A range of other comments unrelated to this question were raised in this section.

P
age 72



Q.13

42.86% of respondents 

either agreed or strongly 

agreed with policy of 

suspending applications 

after an offer of suitable 

accommodation for a 12 

month period.

Q13. Refusal of one suitable offer (without good reason) and 
suspension from the register for 12 months.

month period.

42.86% of respondents 

either disagreed or strongly 

disagreed with this policy.

In addition, 1 paper form 

which disagreed with this 

policy.

P
age 73



Q14. Respondents were asked to comment on the policy of one suitable offer being 
made and suspension from the housing register upon refusal of that offer (without 
good reason) 

87 comments were received about this policy.
• 18 respondents made new proposals mainly focussing on:

o More (2 or 3) opportunities for offers should be available before suspension
o The suspension period should be reduced to 6 months

• 17 comments were largely in agreement with this policy.
• 33 comments were largely in disagreement with this policy.

The rationale for a one suitable offer approach is:
• The housing need, demand and availability in Salford indicates the need for this approach• The housing need, demand and availability in Salford indicates the need for this approach
• Statutory homeless applicants only receive one suitable offer by law
• Applicants should only bid on suitable properties appropriate for their housing needs
• Applicants have 5 days within which to visit the location of the property before bidding on it

If offers increase to 2 before suspension this would promote choice but would result in:
• Longer lengths of stay in Temporary Accommodation (TA) resulting in: direct impacts 

on health & wellbeing of homeless applicants, considerable increases in TA costs to the 
Council and reduced availability of TA for other homeless applicants.

• Additional systems required to monitor the number of offers made resulting in increased 
costs of: IT development and/or staff resources

• Increased costs to housing providers: Increased void and rental loss costs to housing 
providers due to properties being vacant for longer and impacts on staffing resources in 
terms of duplicate administration processes, viewings and sign ups.

P
age 74



Q15

60.28% of all respondents 

either agreed or strongly 

agreed with the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 

proposals (allocation of 

prevention x 2 and relief x1 

points, and removal at the 

Q15. Do you agree with the proposed changes in response to the Homelessness 
Reduction Act?

points, and removal at the 

end of the relief period).

9.22% of respondents either 

disagreed or strongly 

disagreed with the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 

proposals.

In addition, 1 paper form 

was received which response 

disagreed with the 

proposals.

P
age 75



Q16. Respondents were asked to comment on the proposals in response to the 
introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act:

41 respondents commented on this.

8 respondents were broadly in agreement with this policy
6 respondents were broadly in disagreement with this policy

A range of other comments unrelated to this question were raised in this section.

P
age 76



GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL – DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME NOVEMBER 2018

Date Agenda Item(s) Lead Officer(s)

Regular item  Update on Tower Blocks/Cladding
 Budget Monitoring

Councillor Merry/Ben Dolan
Paul Hutchings

December 2018 NO MEETING

28 January 2019, 6.00pm  Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 
 Salford Local Plan

Chris Findley

25 February 2019, 6.00pm  Homelessness Update (including Rough Sleeper Initiative and Review of Housing Options 
Update)

 Derive Update

Updates
 RHS Bridgewater
 Bridgewater Canal

Andrew Leigh
Janice Lowndes

Jim Wensley / Paul Gill

25 March 2019, 6.00pm  University of Salford & Crescent Masterplan
 Q3 Budget Monitoring Report

Shelagh Mcnerney
Paul Hutchings

April 2019 NO MEETING

27 May 2019, 6.00pm  Made to Move Programme
 Highway Investment Programme

Jim Wensley / Lee Evans
Shoaib Mohammad

24 June 2019, 6.00pm  Regeneration 2018/19 Outturn Report
 City of Trees (TBC)
 Carbon Reduction Management (TBC)

Paul Hutchings / Ben Dolan

Abeyance List
 Update on Cambridge
 Western Gateway Update
 Salix Homes – Review of Stock Transfer Agreement
 City West / ForViva Progress Update
 Greening the City (Greenspace Strategy / City of Trees) / Carbon Reduction Management

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 7



2

Portfolio of the Board: Membership – 12 Members:

 Physical regeneration,
 Business investment and programmes,
 Planning, housing and transport strategy and delivery,
 Pendleton PFI,
 Environmental sustainability,
 Housing: (Citywest, Salix client and private),
 Climate change,
 Urban Vision,
 To discharge the Council’s scrutiny functions as lead local flood 

authority.
 To scrutinise the Council’s business plan and budget in this functional 

area.

Councillor Critchley
Councillor Dickman
Councillor R. Garrido
Councillor Jolley
Councillor Lewis (Chair)
Councillor Lindley
Councillor Mashiter
Councillor Ord 
Councillor Pevitt
Councillor Weir
Councillor M. Wheeler
Councillor P. Wilson (Vice Chair)

P
age 78


	Agenda
	3 Q2 Budget Monitoring Report (Paul Hutchings)
	4 Green Space Strategy Supplementary Planning Document (Chris Findley / Steve Davey)
	Briefing Note for Members - Adoption of Salford Greenspace Strategy SPD 2018
	Greenspace Strategy SPD - Growth  Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 26 Nov 2018 (2)

	5 Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan: Update on Local Air Quality Modelling (Sarah Ashurst)
	GMCA 20181026 GM Clean Air Plan (Update on Local Air Quality Monitoring)...
	App1 GMCA 20181026 GM Clean Air Plan (Update on Local Air Quality Monitoring)...
	App2 GMCA 20181026 GM Clean Air Plan (Update on Local Air Quality Monitoring)...
	App3 GMCA 20181026 GM Clean Air Plan (Update on Local Air Quality Monitoring)...
	App4 GMCA 20181026 GM Clean Air Plan (Update on Local Air Quality Monitoring)...

	6 Minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2018 and matters arising.
	7 Draft Work Programme.

